




















June 18, 1998�PRIVATE ��








Dr. John Anfinson


U.S. Army Corps of Engineers


St. Paul District


190 Fifth Street East


St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-1638





Dear John:





Please find enclosed the Historic American Engineering Record (HAER) study for the Portage Canal, Columbia County, Wisconsin.  This study documents a canal structure which includes a single lock and the remains of a second lock, resources significant in history and architecture.





Joyce McKay, private contractor and principle investigator, completed the preparation of the document according to the scope of work entitled: Historic American Engineering Record Documentation, Portage Canal, Portage, Columbia County, Wisconsin under contract number DACW37-98-M-0096 for the St. Paul District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, on June 17, 1998.





The boundaries of the study area which connects the Fox River to the Wisconsin River in the City of Portage, Wisconsin, lies between the two canal banks, a 75' wide corridor.  The Attorney General's Office of the State of Wisconsin has defined this area as the boundary of the canal property.





The description of the structures was completed by Joyce McKay with assistance from Jerry Foellmi of the General Engineering Company, Inc., Portage in November, 1997.  Douglas Bergren of The Studio, Polo, Illinois, with Tom Guschl, Rockford, Illinois, and Fred Galle, Galley Studio, Portage participated in the project as photographers of current views and historic maps and the historic photographs respectively.  The photographic documentation also occurred in November, 1997.  Completed by Joyce McKay, historical documentation of the canal occurred between November 1997 and early January 1998.  The written texts were also prepared by Joyce McKay.  Analysis of materials and preparation of the initial HAER draft text draft reached completion in early May 1998.  The brochure was prepared in late May 1998.





Documentation for the canal came from a wide range of repositories.  The State Historical Society of Wisconsin and the Wendt (Engineering) Library of the University of Wisconsin provided secondary sources gathered to document the historic contexts.  They included the development of canals under state and private agencies, the involvement of the Army Corps of Engineers in federal navigation and flood control policies, the domination of channels of commerce by the railroads and the development of deep channel navigation, the development of flood control programs at the local, state and federal levels, and the technology of canal and lock construction.  Historical information specifically related to the development of Portage came from two National Register nominations and the intensive survey prepared for the Portage Chamber of Commerce by Joyce McKay between 1992 and 1994.  Many of the specific details about the Fox Waterway were taken from two cultural resources studies completed under the aegis of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission by William Meindl ("Upper Fox River Intensive Architectural Historical Survey: Final Report," 1991) and John Vogel ("Lower Fox Corridor Study," 1992).  Samuel Mermin's study, The Fox-Wisconsin River Improvement: A Historical Study in Legal Institutions and Political Economy (Madison: University Extension, University of Wisconsin, 1968) offers a detailed history of the issues which affected the development of the Portage Canal and the Fox-Wisconsin Waterway.





The annual reports of the Army Corps of Engineers examined through indices for the period between 1839 and 1963 provided a main primary source offering historical details specific to the development of the canal.  These reports are located in the serial set, Government Publications, State Historical Society of Wisconsin.





Research also included maps and plans, journals of M.E. White who constructed the Portage Lock in 1926-28, and a few miscellaneous records at the National Archives and Federal Records Center,, Chicago; the relevant federal and state legislation, statutes, laws, and memorials also in Government Publications of the State Historical Society of Wisconsin; miscellaneous papers relating to the State Board of Public Works, the Fox and Wisconsin Improvement Company, and the Green Bay and Mississippi Canal Company held in the Archives of the State Historical Society of Wisconsin and the Outagamie Historical Society in Appleton; a sampling of the records relating to the building and operation of the waterway for this same period held at the Area Research Center, University of Wisconsin at Green Bay; Portage newspapers during the periods when the Portage and Ft. Winnebago locks were rebuilt in 1926-28 and 1936 located on microfilm in the Library Division of the State Historical Society of Wisconsin; memos, reports, correspondence, and maps maintained by the Department of Natural Resources in its main office and at the Southern District on Fish Hatchery Road; miscellaneous memos and maps relating to the Portage Levee located at General Engineering of Portage; photographs and reports of O.G.J. Peters who championed the creation of a deep channel along the Fox in the 1920s-1940s at the Portage Public Library; miscellaneous files of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission, Menasha; and the extensive photographic collection of Fred Galle, Galley Studio, Portage.





The historic photographs copied for the HAER documentation came from the collections of Galley Studio and the Portage Historical Society.  The maps and plans were located in the National Archives and Federal Records Center, Chicago and at General Engineering Company, Inc., Portage, Wisconsin.





Also, enclosed please find a USGS map illustrating the location of the Portage Canal and its significant features.





Sincerely,








Joyce McKay


Cultural Resources Consultant
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